
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

June 7, 2013 
 
John Benson 
Legislative Liaison/Alternate State Coordinating Officer 
Iowa Homeland Security & Emergency Management 
7105 NW 70th Ave.  
Camp Dodge, Bldg. W-4  
Johnston, IA 50131 
 
VIA EMAIL  
 

RE: Flood Mitigation Program 
 
Dear Mr. Benson, 
 
The cities of Cedar Rapids and Dubuque join together to recommend the board approve 
the calculation of Local Match Funding described herein.  We understand that the intent 
of the funding program outlined in this legislation is for the state to provide cities with up 
to 50% of a flood mitigation project cost. Our interpretation is supported by the City 
Attorney of Dubuque and also by the bond attorney for the cities of Cedar Rapids and 
Dubuque.  Their letters are attached outlining justification.   
 
Calculation of Local Match Funding 
 
A calculation used in the Draft Application does not appear to be consistent with the 
legislation language. The legislation dictates that the Flood Mitigation Program funding 
cannot be more than 50% of the total project cost, and that the remaining funds must be 
a combination of federal and local funds. In contrast, the Draft Application outlines that 
the Flood Mitigation Program funding cannot exceed local funding. 
 
Section 418.9(2)d states: “The board shall not approve a project unless at least fifty 
percent of the total cost of the project, less any federal assistance for the project, is 
funded using local matching funds”.  
 
This language establishes that the maximum state flood mitigation funding that the 
board can approve for a project is 50% of the total project cost. The remaining 50% 
must be a combination of federal and local funds. 
   
The legislation requires that the combination of local and federal funds must equal the 
state flood mitigation funding. The Budget Detail (Tab C-2) of the Draft Application 
requires that the local match must equal the state flood mitigation funding. Please see 

 

 



the enclosed Appendix A for additional information comparing the calculation of local 
match in the legislation and in the Draft Application. 
 
The calculation of local match is critically important for communities. We strongly 
recommend revision of the Draft Application to match the legislation requiring that the 
combination of federal and local funding be at least 50% of the total project cost.   
 
Project Definitions and Assumptions 
 
The City of Cedar Rapids and the City of Dubuque would also like to recommend that 
the board clarify the definition of project so it remains consistent with the legislative 
language as it relates to federal funding. 
 
According to legislative language, flood mitigation projects do not require that all 
aspects of the project be federally approved or part of a federal undertaking.  
 
Section 418.1(5) of the Flood Mitigation Legislation states: 
 
“”Project” means the construction or reconstruction of levees, embankments, 
impounding reservoirs, or conduits that are necessary for the protection of property from 
the effect of floodwaters and may include deepening, widening, alteration, change, 
diversion, or other improvement of watercourses if necessary for the protection of such 
property from the effects of floodwaters. A project may consist of one of more phases of 
construction or reconstruction that are contracted for separately if the larger project, of 
which the project is a part, otherwise meets the requirements of this subsection.” 
 
This establishes that a project can consist of multiple phases and various types of 
improvements for the purpose of protecting property from the effects of floodwaters. It 
does not mention anything about whether or not all phases or of the project must be 
federally funded or part of a federal undertaking. 
 
In terms of federal funding, Section 418.4(3)b of the Flood Mitigation Legislation 
requires that: 
 
“The project, or an earlier phase of the project, has been approved to receive 
financial assistance in an amount equal to at least twenty percent of the total project 
cost or thirty million dollars, whichever is less, under a financial assistance program.” 
 
This requires that at least one phase of the project has been approved for federal 
financial assistance and clearly implies that there may be additional phases of a project 
for which federal assistance may not have been provided. The Flood Mitigation 
Legislation does not require all phases/elements of a project to be approved for federal 
assistance. The flood mitigation legislation allows for additional phases/elements not 
specifically approved by a federal agency to be part of a communities flood mitigation 
project. 
 
While Cedar Rapids and Dubuque are both grappling with flooding and how to minimize 
or eliminate repetitive flood losses, the nature of the flooding is specific to the respective 
community. Therefore, the flood mitigation projects will be different; they will be crafted 
to meet the specific needs of each community. Federal financial programs rarely have 
the time and flexibility to allow for the consideration of sustainability based on a 



community’s needs. However, the flood mitigation legislation has allowed for that 
flexibility in Section 418.1(5) and Section 418.4(3).  
 
We request that applications are reviewed with the legislation in mind, and that the 
assumption of the project being entirely a federal project be eliminated. 
 
The clarification of these issues is essential for cities to move forward with an 
application.  We urge your assistance in accomplishing this clarity. 
 
Sincerely, 

                                                            
Ron J. Corbett      Roy D. Buol 
Mayor, City of Cedar Rapids    Mayor, City of Dubuque 
 
Attachments 
 
CC Jeff Pomeranz, City Manager 
Mike Van Milligen, City Manager 












